Mayor: Cr Warren Polglase

Councillors: P Youngblutt (Deputy Mayor) D Holdom B Longland K Milne K Skinner J van Lieshout



# Minutes Planning and Regulation Ordinary Council Meeting Tuesday 20 April 2010

held at Murwillumbah Cultural & Civic Centre commencing at 4.30pm

# THIS PAGE IS BLANK

The Meeting commenced at 4.30pm.

### IN ATTENDANCE

Cr W Polglase (Mayor), Cr P Youngblutt (Deputy Mayor), Cr D Holdom, Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne, Cr K Skinner, Cr J van Lieshout.

Also present were Mr Mike Rayner (General Manager), Mr Troy Green (Director Technology & Corporate Services), Mr Paul Morgan (Acting Director Engineering & Operations), Mr Vince Connell (Director Planning & Regulation), Mr David Oxenham (Director Community & Natural Resources), Mr Neil Baldwin (Manager Corporate Governance/Public Officer) and Mrs Meredith Smith (Minutes Secretary).

# ORDINARY ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION

### **REPORTS THROUGH THE GENERAL MANAGER**

### REPORTS FROM THE DIRECTOR PLANNING AND REGULATION

4 [PR-CM] Development Application DA09/0385 for a Telecommunications Facility (30 Metre High Monopole and Associated Infrastructure) at Lot 17 DP 778719, No. 19 Meadow Place Uki

# 206 Cr D Holdom Cr P Youngblutt

**RESOLVED** that Development Application DA09/0385 for a telecommunications facility (30 metre high monopole and associated infrastructure) at Lot 17 DP 778719, No. 19 Meadow Place, Uki be approved subject to the following conditions: -

GENERAL

1. The development shall be completed in accordance with the Statement of Environmental Effects and Plan Nos S8479F, Sheets G1 – G4 prepared by Daly International dated 06/04/2009, except where varied by the conditions of this consent.

[GEN0005]

2. The issue of this Development Consent does not certify compliance with the relevant provisions of the Building Code of Australia.

[GEN0115]

Page 4

 Approval is given subject to the location of, protection of, and/or any necessary modifications to any existing public utilities situated within or adjacent to the subject property.

[GEN0135]

4. Access to the site shall be upgraded to provide a bitumen seal from edge of the existing road carriageway of meadow Place to the property boundary.

[GENNS01]

5. Erosion and Sediment Control shall be provided and maintained in accordance *Tweed Shire Council Development Design Specification D7 - Stormwater Quality* and its Annexure A - "Code of Practice for Soil and Water Management on Construction Works".

[GENNS01]

6. The access track from the property boundary at Meadow Place to the Optus Compound shall be upgraded to provide a driveway of minimum standard to allow a 2 wheel drive vehicle access to the compound under all weather conditions.

[GENNS01]

- 7. A Right of Carriageway shall be created over the existing property access road servicing the proposed Optus compound.
- 8. An easement for electricity supply (minimum 2m wide) shall be created (as required) over the electricity infrastructure within Lot 17 DP 778719 servicing the proposed Optus compound.

[GENNS01]

9. The monopole is to be painted mist green to blend with it's surrounds.

[GENNS02]

10. At the commencement of building works and in perpetuity the leased area shall be managed as an inner protection area (IPA) as outlined within section 4.1.3 and Appendix 5 of 'Planning for Bush Fire Protection 2006' and the NSW Rural Fire Service's document 'Standards for asset protection zones'.

[GENNS03]

### PRIOR TO ISSUE OF CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

11. In accordance with Section 109F(i) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (as amended), a construction certificate for SUBDIVISION WORKS OR BUILDING WORKS shall NOT be issued until any long service levy payable under Section 34 of the Building and Construction Industry Long Service Payments Act, 1986 (or where such levy is payable by instalments, the first instalment of the levy) has been paid. Council is authorised to accept payment. Where payment has been made elsewhere, proof of payment is to be provided.

[PCC0285]

12. Detailed design drawings for the proposed access road to the monopole site must be submitted for approval by Director Planning and Regulation. The location of native vegetation species must be indicated and named on the plans and measures to avoid or ameliorate impacts indicated. In particular, avoidance of the average 2m wide root plate for larger Brushbox (*Lophostemon confertus*) trees and avoidance of damage to the Strangler Fig (*Ficus watkinsiana*) roots must be demonstrated.

[PCCNS01]

13. A vegetation management plan must be submitted for approval by Director Planning and Regulation detailing compensatory works as an offset for loss of native species. Such works must include planting of a minimum of 40 native species and Camphor Laurel and other weed species control within a defined area no less than 1 hectare in area.

[PCCNS02]

# PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK

- 14. The erection of a building in accordance with a development consent must not be commenced until:
  - (a) a construction certificate for the building work has been issued by the consent authority, the council (if the council is not the consent authority) or an accredited certifier, and
  - (b) the person having the benefit of the development consent has:
    - (i) appointed a principal certifying authority for the building work, and
    - (ii) notified the principal certifying authority that the person will carry out the building work as an owner-builder, if that is the case, and
  - (c) the principal certifying authority has, no later than 2 days before the building work commences:
    - (i) notified the consent authority and the council (if the council is not the consent authority) of his or her appointment, and
    - (ii) notified the person having the benefit of the development consent of any critical stage inspections and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work, and
  - (d) the person having the benefit of the development consent, if not carrying out the work as an owner-builder, has:
    - (i) appointed a principal contractor for the building work who must be the holder of a contractor licence if any residential work is involved, and
    - (ii) notified the principal certifying authority of any such appointment, and
    - (iii) unless that person is the principal contractor, notified the principal contractor of any critical stage inspection and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work.

[PCW0215]

15. Prior to work commencing, a "Notice of Commencement of Building or Subdivision Work and Appointment of Principal Certifying Authority" shall be submitted to Council at least 2 days prior to work commencing.

[PCW0225]

- 16. Where prescribed by the provisions of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000, a sign must be erected in a prominent position on any site on which building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out:
  - (a) showing the name, address and telephone number of the principal certifying authority for the work, and
  - (b) showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) for any building work and a telephone number on which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and
  - (c) stating that unauthorised entry to the site is prohibited.

Any such sign is to be maintained while the building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.

17. Prior to commencement of work on the site all erosion and sedimentation control measures are to be installed and operational including the provision of a "shake down" area where required to the satisfaction of the Principal Certifying Authority. In addition to these measures the core flute sign provided with the stormwater approval under Section 68 of the Local Government Act is to be clearly displayed on the most prominent position of the sediment fence or erosion control device which promotes awareness of the importance of the erosion and sediment controls provided.

This sign is to remain in position for the duration of the project.

[PCW0985]

### DURING CONSTRUCTION

18. All proposed works are to be carried out in accordance with the conditions of development consent, approved drawings and specifications.

 Construction and/or demolition site work including the entering and leaving of vehicles is limited to the following hours, unless otherwise permitted by Council: -Monday to Saturday from 7.00am to 6.00pm

No work to be carried out on Sundays or Public Holidays

The proponent is responsible to instruct and control subcontractors regarding hours of work.

[DUR0205]

20. All building work (other than work relating to the erection of a temporary building) must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia (as in force on the date the application for the relevant construction certificate was made).

[DUR0375]

21. The Principal Certifying Authority is to be given a minimum of 48 hours notice prior to any critical stage inspection or any other inspection nominated by the Principal Certifying Authority via the notice under Section 81A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

[DUR0405]

22. No soil, sand, gravel, clay or other material shall be disposed of off the site without the prior written approval of Tweed Shire Council General Manager or his delegate.

[DUR0985]

- 23. All work associated with this approval is to be carried out so as not to impact on the neighbourhood, adjacent premises or the environment. All necessary precautions, covering and protection shall be taken to minimise impact from: -
  - Noise, water or air pollution
  - dust during filling operations and also from construction vehicles
  - material removed from the site by wind

[DUR1005]

24. The surrounding road carriageways are to be kept clean of any material carried onto the roadway by construction vehicles. Any work carried out by Council to remove material from the roadway will be at the Developers expense. Any damage to property (including pavement damage) is to be rectified by the Developer to the satisfaction of the General Manager.

[DURNS01]

# PRIOR TO ISSUE OF OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE

25. A person must not commence occupation or use of the whole or any part of a new building or structure (within the meaning of Section 109H(4)) unless an occupation certificate has been issued in relation to the building or part (maximum 25 penalty units).

[POC0205]

26. On completion of work a certificate signed by a practising structural engineer is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority to certify the structural adequacy of the structure.

[POC0805]

USE

27. The use to be conducted so as not to cause disruption to the amenity of the locality, particularly by way of the emission of noise, dust and odours or the like.

[USE0125]

28. All externally mounted air conditioning units and other mechanical plant or equipment are to be located so that any noise impact due to their operation which may be or is likely to be experienced by any neighbouring premises is minimised. Notwithstanding this requirement all air conditioning units and other mechanical plant and or equipment is to be acoustically treated or shielded where considered necessary to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate such that the operation of any air conditioning unit, mechanical plant and or equipment does not result in the emission of offensive or intrusive noise.

[USE0175]

29. All externally mounted artificial lighting, including security lighting, is to be shielded to the satisfaction of the General Manager or his delegate where necessary or required so as to prevent the spill of light or glare creating a nuisance to neighbouring or adjacent premises.

[USE0225]

30. All hazardous and/or dangerous goods shall be stored in accordance with requirements of WorkCover NSW.

[USE1035]

31. Works must be completed by qualified bush regenerators in accordance with the approved vegetation management plan.

[USENS01]

# 207 AMENDMENT

# Cr K Milne

Cr B Longland

**PROPOSED** that Council defers Development Application DA09/0385 for a telecommunications facility (30 metre high monopole and associated infrastructure) at Lot 17 DP 778719, No 19 Meadow Place, Uki to enable Council to assist the telecommunications providers to conduct community consultation on the Uki phone tower.

The Amendment was Lost

# FOR VOTE - Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne, Cr J van Lieshout AGAINST VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr D Holdom, Cr K Skinner, Cr W Polglase

The Motion was **Carried** - Minute No 206 refers

# FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr D Holdom, Cr K Skinner, Cr W Polglase AGAINST VOTE - Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne, Cr J van Lieshout

5 [PR-CM] Development Application DA09/0815 for a Four Storey Dwelling House, Inground Swimming Pool including SEPP1 Objection to Three Storey Height Limit at Lot 3 DP 1074375, No. 581 Piggabeen Road, Piggabeen

208 Cr D Holdom Cr P Youngblutt

RESOLVED that: -

- A. Council assumes the concurrence of the Director-General of the Department of Planning for the approval of the SEPP 1 objection to Clause 16 of Tweed Local Environmental Plan 2000 to vary the 3 storey height limit.
- B. Development Application DA09/0815 for a four storey dwelling house, inground swimming pool including SEPP1 objection to three storey height limit at Lot 3 DP 1074375, No. 581 Piggabeen Road Piggabeen be approved subject to the following conditions: -

GENERAL

1. The development shall be completed in accordance with the plans approved by Council and the Statement of Environmental Effects, except where varied by conditions of this consent.

[GEN0015]

2. The issue of this Development Consent does not certify compliance with the relevant provisions of the Building Code of Australia.

[GEN0115]

- 3. In respect of SEPP 44 Koala Habitat Protection the following conditions are imposed:
  - i) Trees are to be retained and removed in accordance with map (plan) on the second page in the Ecological Assessment/Fuel Management Report prepared by the applicant and dated 10-3-2010. No other trees are to be removed.
  - ii) Trees to be removed are to be flagged with orange tape and painted with an orange cross as well and removed prior to construction works commencing.
  - iii) Barriers are to be erected identifying trees to be retained as 'no-go zones'. These barriers are to be placed outside the critical root area (the drip-zone) prior to construction works commencing and are to remain for the period of the construction, including ancillary features.
  - iv) Koala Protection Measures Prior to construction works, trees being removed are to be checked for koalas. If koalas are present then wait for them to move on before removing tree.
  - Koala Protection Measures For the life of the development, prior to trimming or pruning trees check for koalas. If koalas are present then wait for them to move on before trimming or pruning tree.

# PRIOR TO ISSUE OF CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

3. The footings and floor slab are to be designed by a practising Structural Engineer after consideration of a soil report from a NATA accredited soil testing laboratory and shall be submitted to and approved by the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of a construction certificate.

[PCC0945]

- 4. Stormwater
  - (a) Details of the proposed roof water disposal, including surcharge overland flow paths are to be submitted to and approved by the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate. These details shall include likely landscaping within the overland flow paths.
  - (b) All roof water shall be discharged to infiltration pits located wholly within the subject allotment.
  - (c) The infiltration rate for sizing infiltration devices shall be 3m per day:
    - \* As a minimum requirement, infiltration devices are to be sized to accommodate the ARI 3 month storm (deemed to be 40% of the ARI one year event) over a range of storm durations from 5 minutes to 24 hours and infiltrate this storm within a 24 hour period, before surcharging occurs.
  - (d) Surcharge overflow from the infiltration area to the street gutter, interallotment or public drainage system must occur by visible surface flow, not piped.
  - (e) Runoff other than roof water must be treated to remove contaminants prior to entry into the infiltration areas (to maximise life of infiltration areas between major cleaning/maintenance overhauls).

- (f) If the site is under strata or community title, the community title plan is to ensure that the infiltration areas are contained within common land that remain the responsibility of the body corporate (to ensure continued collective responsibility for site drainage).
- (g) All infiltration devices are to be designed to allow for cleaning and maintenance overhauls.
- (h) All infiltration devices are to be designed by a suitably qualified Engineer taking into account the proximity of the footings for the proposed/or existing structures on the subject property, and existing or likely structures on adjoining properties.
- (i) All infiltration devices are to be designed to allow for construction and operation vehicular loading.
- (j) All infiltration devices are to be located clear of stormwater or sewer easements.

[PCC1135]

- 5. A construction certificate application for works that involve any of the following:-
  - connection of a private stormwater drain to a public stormwater drain
  - installation of stormwater quality control devices
  - erosion and sediment control works

will not be approved until prior separate approval to do so has been granted by Council under S68 of the Local Government Act.

- Applications for these works must be submitted on Council's standard s68 stormwater drainage application form accompanied by the required attachments and the prescribed fee.
- b) Where Council is requested to issue a construction certificate for civil works associated with a subdivision consent, the abovementioned works can be incorporated as part of the construction certificate application, to enable one single approval to be issued. Separate approval under section 68 of the LG Act will then NOT be required.

[PCC1145]

6. An application shall be lodged together with any prescribed fees including inspection fees and approved by Tweed Shire Council under Section 68 of the Local Government Act for any water, sewerage, on site sewerage management system or drainage works including connection of a private stormwater drain to a public stormwater drain, installation of stormwater quality control devices or erosion and sediment control works, prior to the issue of a construction certificate.

[PCC1195]

7. Prior to the issue of a construction certificate the applicant is required to lodge an application to install/operate an onsite sewerage management system (private ejection pump station) under Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993, pay the appropriate fee and be issued with an approval.

Any application to install/operate an onsite sewerage management system (private ejection pump station) under Section 68 of the Local Government

Act 1993 shall be accompanied by three copies of detailed hydraulic design report certified by a qualified hydraulic engineer and shall address the following criteria:

- \* System type and specifications including pump-well volume, pump specifications and rising main size, length and location.
- \* Details of operation and maintenance
- \* The sewer pump is to be constructed in a flood proof well.

Any approval to install an on site sewerage treatment system (private ejection pump station) shall comply with the hydraulic design specifications as certified by a qualified Hydraulic Engineer including all recommendations of that report and any addendum to the report to the satisfaction of Councils General Manager or his delegate.

[PCC1295]

8. Prior to the issue of the construction certificate the applicant/owner is to submit to the nominated principal certifying authority details of the external colours and finishes of the development which are sympathetic to the bushland environment.

[PCCNS01]

### PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK

9. The proponent shall accurately locate and identify any existing underground infrastructure within or adjacent to the site and the Principal Certifying Authority advised of its location and depth prior to commencing works and ensure there shall be no conflict between the proposed development and existing infrastructure prior to start of any works.

[PCW0005]

10. Prior to commencement of work all actions or prerequisite works required at that stage, as required by other conditions or approved management plans or the like, shall be installed/operated in accordance with those conditions or plans.

[PCW0015]

- 11. The erection of a building in accordance with a development consent must not be commenced until:
  - (a) a construction certificate for the building work has been issued by the consent authority, the council (if the council is not the consent authority) or an accredited certifier, and
  - (b) the person having the benefit of the development consent has:
    - (i) appointed a principal certifying authority for the building work, and
    - (ii) notified the principal certifying authority that the person will carry out the building work as an owner-builder, if that is the case, and
  - (c) the principal certifying authority has, no later than 2 days before the building work commences:
    - (i) notified the consent authority and the council (if the council is not the consent authority) of his or her appointment, and

- (ii) notified the person having the benefit of the development consent of any critical stage inspections and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work, and
- (d) the person having the benefit of the development consent, if not carrying out the work as an owner-builder, has:
  - (i) appointed a principal contractor for the building work who must be the holder of a contractor licence if any residential work is involved, and
  - (ii) notified the principal certifying authority of any such appointment, and
  - (iii) unless that person is the principal contractor, notified the principal contractor of any critical stage inspection and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work.

[PCW0215]

12. Prior to work commencing, a "Notice of Commencement of Building or Subdivision Work and Appointment of Principal Certifying Authority" shall be submitted to Council at least 2 days prior to work commencing.

[PCW0225]

- 13. Residential building work:
  - (a) Residential building work within the meaning of the <u>Home Building Act</u> <u>1989</u> must not be carried out unless the principal certifying authority for the development to which the work relates (not being the council) has given the council written notice of the following information:
    - (i) in the case of work for which a principal contractor is required to be appointed:
      - \* in the name and licence number of the principal contractor, and
      - \* the name of the insurer by which the work is insured under Part 6 of that Act,
    - (ii) in the case of work to be done by an owner-builder:
      - \* the name of the owner-builder, and
      - \* if the owner-builder is required to hold an owner builder permit under that Act, the number of the owner-builder permit.
  - (b) If arrangements for doing the residential building work are changed while the work is in progress so that the information notified under subclause (1) becomes out of date, further work must not be carried out unless the principal certifying authority for the development to which the work relates (not being the council) has given the council written notice of the updated information.

[PCW0235]

- A temporary builder's toilet is to be provided prior to commencement of work at the rate of one (1) closet for every fifteen (15) persons or part of fifteen (15) persons employed at the site. Each toilet provided must be:-
  - (a) a standard flushing toilet connected to a public sewer, or

(b) if that is not practicable, an accredited sewage management facility approved by the council

[PCW0245]

- 15. Where prescribed by the provisions of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000, a sign must be erected in a prominent position on any site on which building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out:
  - (a) showing the name, address and telephone number of the principal certifying authority for the work, and
  - (b) showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) for any building work and a telephone number on which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and
  - (c) stating that unauthorised entry to the site is prohibited.

Any such sign is to be maintained while the building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.

[PCW0255]

16. Prior to commencement of work on the site all erosion and sedimentation control measures are to be installed and operational including the provision of a "shake down" area where required to the satisfaction of the Principal Certifying Authority.

In addition to these measures the core flute sign provided with the stormwater approval under Section 68 of the Local Government Act is to be clearly displayed on the most prominent position of the sediment fence or erosion control device which promotes awareness of the importance of the erosion and sediment controls provided.

This sign is to remain in position for the duration of the project.

[PCW0985]

### DURING CONSTRUCTION

17. All proposed works are to be carried out in accordance with the conditions of development consent, approved construction certificate, drawings and specifications.

[DUR0005]

 Construction and/or demolition site work including the entering and leaving of vehicles is limited to the following hours, unless otherwise permitted by Council: -

Monday to Saturday from 7.00am to 6.00pm

No work to be carried out on Sundays or Public Holidays

The proponent is responsible to instruct and control subcontractors regarding hours of work.

[DUR0205]

19. The wall and roof cladding is to have low reflectivity where they would otherwise cause nuisance to the occupants of buildings with direct line of sight to the proposed building.

[DUR0245]

20. All building work (other than work relating to the erection of a temporary building) must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia (as in force on the date the application for the relevant construction certificate was made).

[DUR0375]

21. Building materials used in the construction of the building are not to be deposited or stored on Council's footpath or road reserve, unless prior approval is obtained from Council.

[DUR0395]

22. The Principal Certifying Authority is to be given a minimum of 48 hours notice prior to any critical stage inspection or any other inspection nominated by the Principal Certifying Authority via the notice under Section 81A of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

[DUR0405]

23. It is the responsibility of the applicant to restrict public access to the construction works site, construction works or materials or equipment on the site when construction work is not in progress or the site is otherwise unoccupied in accordance with WorkCover NSW requirements and Occupational Health and Safety Regulation 2001.

[DUR0415]

- 24. Excavation
  - (a) All excavations and backfilling associated with the erection or demolition of a building must be executed safely and in accordance with WorkCover 2000 Regulations.
  - (b) All excavations associated with the erection or demolition of a building must be properly guarded and protected to prevent them from being dangerous to life or property.

#### [DUR0425]

25. All demolition work is to be carried out in accordance with the provisions of Australian Standard AS 2601 "The Demolition of Structures" and to the relevant requirements of the WorkCover NSW, Occupational Health and Safety Regulation 2001.

The proponent shall also observe the guidelines set down under the Department of Environment and Climate Change publication, "A Renovators Guide to the Dangers of Lead" and the Workcover Guidelines on working with asbestos.

[DUR0645]

26. The development is to be carried out in accordance with the current BASIX certificate and schedule of commitments approved in relation to this development consent.

[DUR0905]

- 27. All work associated with this approval is to be carried out so as not to impact on the neighbourhood, adjacent premises or the environment. All necessary precautions, covering and protection shall be taken to minimise impact from: -
  - Noise, water or air pollution

- dust during filling operations and also from construction vehicles
- material removed from the site by wind

[DUR1005]

- 28. Swimming Pools (Building)
  - (a) The swimming pool is to be installed and access thereto restricted in accordance with Australian Standard AS 1926.1 – 2007 & AS 1926.3 -2003. (Refer Council's web site www.tweed.nsw.gov.au)
  - (b) Swimming pools shall have suitable means for the drainage and disposal of overflow water.
  - (c) The pool pump and filter is to be enclosed and located in a position so as not to cause a noise nuisance to adjoining properties.
  - (d) Warning notices are to be provided in accordance with Part 3 of the Swimming Pool Regulations 2008.

[DUR2075]

29. Backwash from the swimming pool is to be connected to the sewer in accordance with Australian Standard AS 3500.2 Section 10.9.

[DUR2085]

30. The proposed swimming pool is to be sited a minimum distance of 6 metres from any effluent disposal area.

[DUR2105]

31. The builder must provide an adequate trade waste service to ensure that all waste material is contained, and removed from the site for the period of construction/demolition.

[DUR2185]

32. The guttering downpiping and roof waste water disposal system is to be installed and operational before the roofing is installed.

[DUR2245]

- 33. Council is to be given 24 hours notice for any of the following inspections prior to the next stage of construction:
  - (a) internal drainage, prior to slab preparation;
  - (b) water plumbing rough in, and/or stackwork prior to the erection of brick work or any wall sheeting;
  - (c) external drainage prior to backfilling.
  - (d) completion of work and prior to occupation of the building.

[DUR2485]

34. Dual flush water closet suites are to be installed in accordance with Local Government Water and Sewerage and Drainage Regulations 1993.

[DUR2515]

35. All water plumbing pipes concealed in concrete or masonry walls shall be fully lagged.

[DUR2525]

36. Overflow relief gully is to be located clear of the building and at a level not less than 150mm below the lowest fixture within the building and 75mm above finished ground level.

[DUR2545]

- 37. All new hot water installations shall deliver hot water at the outlet of sanitary fixtures used primarily for personal hygiene purposes at a temperature not exceeding:-
  - \* 43.5°C for childhood centres, primary and secondary schools and nursing homes or similar facilities for aged, sick or disabled persons; and
  - \* 50°C in all other classes of buildings.

A certificate certifying compliance with the above is to be submitted by the licensed plumber on completion of works.

[DUR2555]

38. An On-site Sewage Management System shall be installed in accordance with an Approval to Install an On-site Sewage Management System under Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993.

[DUR2775]

### PRIOR TO ISSUE OF OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE

39. Prior to issue of an occupation certificate, all works/actions/inspections etc required at that stage by other conditions or approved management plans or the like shall be completed in accordance with those conditions or plans.

[POC0005]

40. A person must not commence occupation or use of the whole or any part of a new building or structure (within the meaning of Section 109H(4)) unless an occupation certificate has been issued in relation to the building or part (maximum 25 penalty units).

[POC0205]

- 41. Prior to the issue of an occupation certificate,
  - (a) Certification of termite protection methods performed by the person carrying out the works is to be submitted to the PCA; and
  - (b) A durable notice must be permanently fixed to the building in a prominent location, such as in the electrical meter box indicating:-
    - (i) the method of protection; and
    - (ii) the date of installation of the system; and
    - (iii) where a chemical barrier is used, its life expectancy as listed on the National Registration Authority label; and
    - (iv) the need to maintain and inspect the system on a regular basis.

[POC0235]

42. Application is to be made to Tweed Shire Council for a street address number. The number is to be prominently displayed prior to the occupation of the building.

[POC0245]

43. Prior to the occupation of any building and prior to the issue of any occupation certificate a final inspection report is to be obtained from Council to verify the satisfactory installation of all plumbing and drainage and the on-site sewage management facility.

[POC1035]

44. Prior to the issue of a final occupation certificate, all conditions of consent are to be met.

[POC1055]

### RURAL FIRE SERVICE CONDITIONS

### Asset Protection Zones

The intent of measures is to minimise the risk of bush fire attack and provide protection for emergency services personnel, residents and others assisting fire fighting activities.

- 1. At the commencement of building works and in perpetuity the property around the building shall be managed as follows as outlined within section 4.1.3 and Appendix 5 of 'Planning for Bush Fire Protection 2006' and the NSW Rural Fire Service's document 'Standards for asset protection zones':
  - north for a distance of 20 metres as an asset protection zone;
  - east for a distance of 9 metres as an asset protection zone;
  - south for a distance of 15 metres as an asset protection zone; and
  - west for a distance of 19 metres as an asset protection zone (APZ). (Note: in forested areas a portion of the APZ may be maintained as an outer protection zone as specified in Table A2.7 of 'Planning for Bush Fire Protection 2006'.)

Water and Utilities

The intent of measures is to minimise the risk of bush fire attack and provide protection for emergency services personnel, residents and others assisting firefighting activities.

- 2. Water, electricity and gas are to comply with the following requirements of section 4.1.3 of 'Planning for Bush Fire Protection 2006'.
  - The water source shall be made available or located within the inner protection area (IPA) and away from the structure.
  - A hardened ground surface for truck access is to be supplied up to and within4 metres of the water source.
  - A 65mm metal Storz outlet with a gate or ball valve shall be provided.
  - In recognition that no reticulated water supply exists, a 20000 litre water supply shall be provided for fire fighting purposes.
  - Above ground tanks are manufactured of concrete or metal and raised tanks are to have their stands protected. Plastic tanks shall not be used.
  - A minimum 5hp or 3kW petrol or diesel powered pump shall be made available to the water supply. A 19mm (internal diameter) fire hose and reel shall be connected to the pump.

• Gas cylinders kept close to the building shall have release valves directed away from the building. Connections to and from gas cylinders are to be metal. Polymer sheathed flexible gas supply lines to gas meters adjacent to building are not to be used.

# Access

The intent of measures for property access is to provide safe access to/from the public road system for fire fighters providing property protection during a bush fire and for occupants faced with evacuation.

3. Property access roads shall comply with section 4.1.3 (2) of 'Planning for Bush Fire Protection 2006'.

# Design and Construction

The intent of measures is that buildings are designed and constructed to withstand the potential impacts of bush fire attack.

- 4. New construction shall comply with Australian Standard AS3959-1999 'Construction of buildings in bush fire-prone areas' Level 3.
- 5. All exposed/external timber used in the development shall be of a fire resistant timber species as identified in RFS Development Control Note 001. These species include: Blackbutt, Kwila (Merbau), Red Iron Bark, Red River Gum, Silver Top Ash, Spotted Gum and Turpentine.
- 6. All Class 10 structures as defined per the 'Building Code of Australia' 2006 attached to or within 10 metres of the habitable building shall comply with Australian Standard AS3959-1999 'Construction of buildings in bush fire-prone areas' Level 3.
- 7. Roller doors, tilt-a-doors and other such doors shall be sealed to prevent the entry of embers into the building
- 8. Roofing shall be gutterless or guttering and valleys are to be screened to prevent the build up of flammable material. Any materials used shall have a Flammability Index of no greater than 5 when tested in accordance with Australian Standard AS1530.2-1993 'Methods for Fire Tests on Building Materials, Components and Structures Test for Flammability of Materials'.
- 9. Proposed bi-fold doors, french door and the like on the dwelling may be unscreened if it's a proprietary type door system incorporating, 5mm toughened glass, non combustible seals, and a design that does not permit gaps greater than 1.8mm in diameter to prevent the penetration of embers. Draught excluders, seals and door furniture shall be manufactured from materials having a "Flammability Index" no greater than 5. The entire door system (including jamb and seals) shall be designed and constructed to withstand 29kW/m2 of radiant heat flux.

# Landscaping

10. Landscaping to the site is to comply with the principles of Appendix 5 of 'Planning for Bush Fire Protection 2006'

# The Motion was **Carried**

FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr D Holdom, Cr K Skinner, Cr J van Lieshout, Cr W Polglase AGAINST VOTE - Cr B Longland, Cr K Milne

# 6 [PR-CM] Tweed Development Control Plan Section B23 - Hastings Point Locality Based Development Code

# 209 Cr D Holdom

# Cr P Youngblutt

# RESOLVED that:-

- 1. The report on Tweed Development Control Plan Section B23 Hastings Point Locality Based Development Code be received and noted;
- 2. Tweed Development Control Plan Section B23 Hastings Point Locality Based Development Code be publicly exhibited for a minimum period of 60 days, in accordance with section 74E of the *Environmental Planning Assessment Act* 1979; and
- 3. Following public exhibition the Draft Tweed Development Control Plan, Section B23 Hastings Point Locality Based Development Code, having regard to matters arising from the public consultation and any submissions received, a further report be submitted to Council seeking final adoption of the Plan.

The Motion was **Carried** 

# FOR VOTE - Unanimous

# 7 [PR-CM] Pottsville Locality Based Development Code

210 Cr B Longland Cr J van Lieshout

### **RESOLVED** that Council:-

- 1. Receives and notes the amendments to the publicly exhibited Draft Development Control Plan Section B21 - Pottsville Locality Based Development draft Plan, arising from the review of public consultation submissions;
- Adopts the Development Control Plan Section B21 Pottsville Locality Based Development draft Plan, as amended, and provided as an attachment to this report, and resolves to give public notice of the Plan's adoption in accordance with Clause 21(2) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000; and
- 3. Requests the Director of Planning and Regulation to forward a copy of Development Control Plan Section B21 - Pottsville Locality Based Development draft Plan to the Director-General of the NSW Department of Planning in

accordance with Clause 25AB of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000.

### The Motion was Carried

FOR VOTE - Cr P Youngblutt, Cr D Holdom, Cr K Skinner, Cr B Longland, Cr J van Lieshout, Cr W Polglase AGAINST VOTE - Cr K Milne

8 [PR-CM] Variations to Development Standards under State Environmental Planning Policy No. 1 - Development Standards

211 Cr P Youngblutt Cr D Holdom

**RESOLVED** that Council notes the March 2010 Variations to Development Standards under State Environmental Planning Policy No 1 - Development Standards.

The Motion was Carried

FOR VOTE - Unanimous